
Regular City Council Meeting
Tuesday, September 9, 2025 at 6:00 pm

AGENDA
A regularly scheduled meeting of the Duchesne City Council will be held at the Duchesne City Office
Building, 500 East Main, Duchesne, UT at the above date and time. The agenda will be as follows:

Attest:
Myra Young, Recorder: ______________________________________________

Roll Call, Prayer, Pledge1.

Minutes2.

Bills3.

Charges and Credits4.

Business License5.

Planning And Zoning6.

Simple Boundary Adjustment - Lane Genereaux7.

Javelin Rig - Airport8.

Clarification on Executive Session Request - Myra Young9.

America 250 Utah - Process10.

RESOLUTION AMERICA 250 UTAH11.

Lead and Copper Rule12.

15-Minute Open Session
The City of Duchesne welcomes you and thanks you for your time and concerns. If you wish to
address the City Council, this is the time set on the agenda for you to do so. When you are
recognized, please step to the podium, state your name and address then address the Council.
Your comments will be limited to three (3) minutes. The Council may not respond to your comments
this evening, rather they may take your comments and suggestions under advisement and provide
direction to the appropriate member of City Staff for follow-up. Thank you.

13.

Book Of Complaints, Concerns And Comments14.

Mayor And Council Review Of Old Business15.

Work Session16.

Executive Session17.

Adjournment18.

Page 1



Contact: Myra Young (myoung@duchesnecity.com 435-738-2464) | Agenda published on 09/08/2025 at 3:50 PM

Page 2



Special City Council Meeting
Minutes

Monday, August 18, 2025 at 6:00 pm

Agenda
A specially scheduled meeting of the Duchesne City Council will be held at the Duchesne City Office
Building, 500 East Main, Duchesne, UT at the above date and time. The agenda will be as follows:

Roll call, prayer, pledge

Minutes:
Mayor Rowley conducted the meeting. City Recorder, Myra Young took minutes. City
Council Members present were, Bryce Hamilton, Matt Skewes, Jenny Adams, Cody
Ivie, and Jason Baker. Council Member Hamilton offered the prayer. Mayor Rowley led
the Pledge of Allegiance.
Duchesne City Employee Attendees: Stephanie Skewes, Jessica North, Lane
Genereaux
Public Attendees: Weston Despain, Elaine Despain, Heather Ivie, Jeff Crozier, Mandie
Crozier, Dawnette Browning, Anna Dilello, Chuck Richins, Deborah Herron, Austin
Nolden, Rose Nolden, Kimberly Malkogainnis, Trevor Bird, Caleb Thomas

1.

Minutes

Minutes:
MOTION by Council Member Adams seconded by Council Member Ivie to approve the
minutes dated 7/22/2025.

Motion carried by unanimous vote.

Council Member Hamilton – Aye•

Council Member Skewes - Aye•

Council Member Adams - Aye•

Council Member Ivie – Aye•

Council Member Baker – Aye•

2.

Bills

Minutes:
MOTION by Council Member Hamilton, seconded by Council Member Skewes to pay
the bills.

Council Member Hamilton – Aye•

Council Member Skewes - Aye•

Council Member Adams - Aye•

Council Member Ivie – Aye•

3.

Page 3



Motion carried by unanimous vote.
Council Member Baker – Aye•

Business License

Minutes:
There were no business licenses to report to the City Council.

4.

Planning and Zoning

Minutes:
Nothing to report.

5.

Javelin - Jeff Crozier - Airport FAA Approval

Minutes:
Jeff Crozier, representing Javelin, requested approval from the Airport Management
and City Council for three proposed wells around the airport property. He presented a
map showing existing wells (red) and three proposed locations (blue). These sites had
prior approval, but their permits have expired. Jeff explained that while the FAA has
issued favorable determinations, drilling cannot proceed without City approval under
the new airport ordinance. He emphasized that Javelin’s spacing requirements and
drilling limitations make relocation difficult, though Mayor Rowley expressed concern
that one proposed rig is directly in line with the runway glide slope, leaving only 20 feet
of clearance between aircraft and the rig. The Mayor recommended relocating the rig
further east or west for safety. Jeff and Mandie Crozier outlined the FAA’s conditions,
noting the agency suggested seasonal restrictions or limited drilling windows but
acknowledged that rig height cannot be reduced once constructed. They also
confirmed that permanent facilities already have FAA approval and that drilling
operations would be temporary, lasting 18–20 days, with all rigs equipped with required
lighting. The Mayor reiterated that safety must come first, citing risks during instrument
approaches in poor visibility. Council Members Ivie, Hamilton, Adams, and Baker asked
clarifying questions about flight volumes, FAA approvals, potential mitigation measures,
and whether temporary changes (such as shortening the runway or shifting operations)
could provide a solution. Mandie noted that Javelin’s 2026 drilling program depends on
these wells and that delays are preventing them from securing rig contracts. She also
stated that while FAA cannot prohibit drilling, they require proper notifications to pilots
(NOTAMs) and place liability on the operator. Javelin expressed willingness to
cooperate with the City to avoid conflict and explore workable solutions. Council
Members requested diagrams from J-U-B Engineers to better visualize the glide slope
and clearance issues. Jeff agreed to investigate possible adjustments with Javelin’s
engineers and surface owners and requested to be placed on the September 26th City
Council agenda for further discussion. The Council agreed to provide written email
confirmation of approval for the other two wells to FAA contact Nathan Shelley while
continuing to evaluate the third proposed location.

6.

Old Farm Road - Elaine Despain

Minutes:
Elaine Despain addressed the Council and thanked them for hearing her concerns
again. She referenced her email and exhibits showing the damage already caused to

7.

Page 4



her property by the utility project.
Elaine explained that when the project on her road began, the work originated in her
yard with the relocation of utilities. However, the power line was ultimately moved to
the far end of the easement, leaving no room for future repairs without encroaching on
her property. She emphasized this creates long-term access and maintenance issues
and could have been avoided.
Elaine expressed her frustration that she does not believe the City Council was fully
informed about alternative options before the decision was made. She explained that
she only discovered this after attending a council meeting herself, at which point the
Mayor had already instructed the engineer not to pursue the alternative. She believes if
the Council had been made aware, most members would have supported the less
intrusive option, which would have reduced encroachment on her property and saved
the city money.
She also questioned the justification of “safety concerns,” noting she has lived at the
property for 32 years without ever seeing an accident at the location. She maintains her
own trees to preserve visibility and believes trimming them would have been sufficient.
Elaine expressed frustration that, instead, her trees were damaged by equipment
operators who assumed they would be removed. The result, she said, is mutilated and
unsalvageable trees that she never would have trimmed in such a manner.
Elaine stated that, under Utah statute, public utilities are required to restore or repair
any fence, grass, soil, shrubbery, bushes, flowers or other low-level vegetation,
sprinkler systems, irrigation systems, gravel, flat concrete, or asphalt damaged or
displaced during utility work within an easement. She acknowledged that trees planted
in the easement were at her own risk but stressed that her trees would not have been
destroyed had the alternative route been chosen.
Council Member Baker said his decisions on projects have always been based on
choosing the “least intrusive option.” He felt the alternative alignment was clearly the
better choice and would have supported it. Elaine agreed and reiterated her belief that
the alternative would have been fair to both sides and avoided unnecessary impacts.
Discussion followed regarding the retaining wall, curb, and road. Elaine emphasized
again that she wants it on record exactly what will be repaired or replaced. Specifically,
she asked that the driveway be returned to cement, the blacktop patched with a clean
straight cut rather than jagged edges, and the grass restored. She also expects four
replacement trees for the damaged ones, as promised. She noted that her flagpole can
be saved, though the cement base will likely be lost, and she understands that
permanent fixtures in the easement are not protected. Council Member Baker
confirmed with Elaine that she wants the damaged trees to be removed, she confirmed
yes. Council Member Ivie confirmed that the alternative route for the sewer line will be
placed in the redlining on the map (re-designment). Elaine wondered what condition the
road will be left in. Chuck Richins , Horrocks Engineer explained that the road surface is
already in poor condition and proposed using roto mill asphalt to patch the trench.
Council Member Ivie clarified this project would only patch, not repave, the road. The
road will need to be addressed later.
Mayor Rowley confirmed the City would ensure: Four replacement trees will be planted
to replace those damaged, Elaine’s driveway will be restored with cement, The
damaged curb will be repaired, The asphalt will be repaired with straight cut not
jagged, The grass is restored, Any bushes on the corner damaged or removed will be
replaced, If the retaining wall is damaged during the project, it will be repaired, oil spills Page 5



and other damage caused by equipment will be addressed.
It was clarified that the contractor is responsible for repairs outside the easement, while
the City is responsible for restoration inside the easement.
Elaine concluded by asking again that all of this be clearly recorded so there are no
disputes later. She thanked the Council for working with her but stressed she is
standing firm to protect what remains of her property.

RESOLUTION 2025-05 CALLING RAP TAX ELECTION

Minutes:
Council Member Baker emphasized that the RAP tax is not a new tax. This 0.1% local
sales tax, equal to just one penny for every $10 spent in Duchesne has been in place
for more than 10 years and is now simply up for renewal. The funds go directly toward
supporting arts, parks, and recreation within the community. Baker clarified that the
City is not increasing taxes but is required to place the reauthorization on the ballot
every 10 years for voter approval.
City Recorder, Myra Young reminded the Council that they will need to prepare official
argument language for the voter information pamphlet, emphasizing the importance of
clearly explaining to residents that this is a renewal, not a tax increase.
MOTION by Council Member Ivie, seconded by Council Member Hamilton, to approve
the Resolution 2025-05 Calling RAP Tax Election.

Motion carried by unanimous vote.

Council Member Hamilton – Aye•

Council Member Skewes - Aye•

Council Member Adams - Aye•

Council Member Ivie – Aye•

Council Member Baker – Aye•

8.

15-Minute Open Session

Minutes:

A VIP reception for city personnel and elected officials is scheduled for Friday,
September 12, with additional evening receptions planned. Invitations will be sent out
to all.
Council Member Adams asked if liability forms would be available for participants/
artists to sign. Deborah confirmed they would and requested that someone from the
city accept the signed forms. Mayor Rowley noted that the City had not yet seen the
wording of the liability release. Deborah explained that she had provided

Anna Dilello has respectfully requested an executive session with the City
Council to be held in early September, regarding pending litigation related to
issues the residents of Old Farm Road have encountered. The request is directed
to the City Council only excluding the Mayor. The meeting is tentatively
scheduled for Wednesday, September 3, at 6:00 p.m.

•

Deborah Herron, representing the Duchesne Arts Council, provided an update on
the upcoming sculpture art show, with artwork scheduled to arrive and be set up
at the Duchesne Welcome Center on Wednesday, August 20th. The exhibit will
be open on Mondays and Saturdays, and Deborah assured the Council that there
will always be a representative present during open hours.

•

9.

Page 6



documentation to Council Member Ivie and Carl for review, the wording contains that
the artists would assume full responsibility for the artwork and would not hold the City
liable for any damage to the art. Mayor Rowley reminded her that the City also requires
assurance that any damage to City property would be covered. Deborah agreed to
provide additional documentation before the exhibit begins.
Insurance coverage and security were discussed. Deborah explained that the artwork
would be secure, as the building would be locked and cameras were in place. Mayor
Rowley asked who would be responsible for managing the keys to the Welcome
Center. Deborah confirmed she would take responsibility on Saturdays, while another
Arts Council member would cover Mondays. She committed to ensuring accountability
and said keys would be checked in and out using the City’s drop box system, with the
city office recording who is responsible at any given time.

Mayor Rowley added that the system will have to be pressurized, even though some
have hoped it could be done differently. Chuck agreed, stating it cannot function by
gravity and must be designed as pressurized unless a new design is produced. Mayor
Rowley asked how many sleeves are planned, and Chuck confirmed about four or five.
Council Member Hamilton asked where they would go. Mayor Rowley explained there
would be 8-inch sleeves installed perpendicular across the road so utilities could
connect without cutting through the asphalt later.

He concluded that while this is generally a good contractor he has worked with before,
this mistake has caused major setbacks. The likely fix will be to install a new, deeper
manhole near the existing one on Highway 87, then tie into the system properly.

Austin Nolden, a resident on Old Farm Road across from Elaine Despain, asked
whether his trees would also need to be removed. Mayor Rowley responded that
he did not believe the trees would be affected unless they are determined to be a
safety hazard. Mr. Nolden explained that he had already planned to trim the trees
but did not want to pay for the work if they were going to be removed. He
confirmed that he will move forward with scheduling the trimming.

•

Chuck Richins with Horrocks Engineering asked about the plan for sleeves on
Old Farm Road. He reminded the council that they had previously discussed
installing sleeves at strategic locations to avoid future asphalt cuts and asked if
that was still the plan. Mayor Rowley confirmed that it was. Council Member Ivie
supported installing them.

•

Chuck then raised questions about outstanding invoices. Mayor Rowley
confirmed that invoice #93722 had been paid, while Chuck clarified that another
$29,000 invoice will be reimbursed through CIB funds. He also noted a $490
invoice related to GIS work adding storm drain data for Main Street, the school,
and other locations, and producing updated utility books. Mayor Rowley
confirmed this was correct, and Chuck provided the invoice to Jessica North for
payment.

•

Chuck explained that today the sewer line installed on Old Farm Road is too high
for the residential laterals to connect properly. According to the plans and
preconstruction meetings, the contractor should have verified depths to ensure
proper flow before installing the sewer. Now, they may need to re-lay portions of
the line. The only options are to either drop the line further along the sidewalk
toward Scotch Pine or force residents to install pumps which one resident has
already said is unacceptable.

•

Page 7



However, going down the sidewalk could mean removing two of Elaine Despain’s pine
trees. Chuck stressed that this problem rests solely with the contractor, as it had been
clearly discussed multiple times before installation began.

Lane’s next question was about setting a dollar threshold for purchases that require
prior City Council approval. Mayor Rowley explained that if an expense is already in the
approved budget, he has authority to approve amounts up to $80,000 before seeking
Council approval. Lane felt there should still be a spending limit requiring oversight to
ensure accountability. The Council clarified that employees should always obtain
approval for large purchases through their supervisor or the Mayor before moving
forward.
Lane noted this concern was raised because Zack is looking into another major project:
upgrading the lights on the northwest baseball field. A bid is pending. Council Member
Baker asked if the new lights would be more efficient, and Lane confirmed they would.
Council Member Ivie asked about field usage at night. Lane reported increasing
demand, particularly for softball tournaments, and explained that one tournament had
gone elsewhere due to a lack of lighted fields. He emphasized that upgrading would
attract more teams and visitors.
Mayor Rowley added that the bigger issue is the aging wooden poles, many of which
are more than 40 years old, and their safety is uncertain. Council Member Skewes
noted replacement parts for the current lights are no longer available. The group agreed
that upgrades are necessary.
Lane asked whether employees should bring project ideas directly to him or present
them to the Council. Mayor Rowley suggested that employees present projects at
Council meetings, giving both visibility and input. Lane agreed, saying he would like to
see staff more engaged in this way.
Treasurer Stephanie Skewes added that she provides updated budget information at
one Monday meeting each month, which helps staff stay informed on available funds.

Lane Genereaux brought up the recent $18,000 payment to Barco for park tables
and asked if RAP Tax funds could be used for the expense. The Council agreed
that RAP Tax funds would be used to cover the purchase.

•

Mayor and Council Review of Old Business

Minutes:

Council Member Ivie asked whether the city was guaranteeing future connections.
Mayor Rowley clarified that while the city can manage the water connections internally,
the sewer project will require contractors. Chuck Richins expects the project design to
be completed soon, with bids anticipated by September or October. There was
discussion that it may not be completed within the year, there is no way to guarantee a
timeline.

Council Member Ivie asked for clarification regarding building permits in
Duchesne Townsites (D-Hill), noting his understanding that no permits were
being issued until the city completed the water and sewer project. Mayor Rowley
explained that two permits had already been issued, and according to Cody
Fisher, the city cannot legally deny building permits. Mayor Rowley noted that the
two residents involved stated they would not be seeking occupancy for at least a
year, and he informed them that sewer and water service would not be available
until then.

•

10.

Page 8



When asked about funding, Mayor Rowley confirmed that financing is in place,
contingent on receiving a required tribal letter.
City Recorder Myra Young requested directions for office staff on handling these
situations. Mayor Rowley instructed that staff should continue issuing permits but
require applicants to sign a statement of understanding.
It was also discussed that septic systems will not be allowed, and once the sewer
project is completed, all properties will be required by city ordinance to connect to the
city sewer system.

Mayor Rowley responded that the larger concerns currently come from high use
facilities such as schools, churches, and event centers, and those should remain the
immediate focus. Ivie then asked City Engineer Chuck Richins what would be required
to change the city’s sewer rates.
Chuck explained that while they are currently working on the Master Plan, it does not
include this specific study. However, it could be added for an additional cost. He noted
that if the council is considering impact fees, the process is lengthy, likely around six
years, and that those funds would be restricted for use on system improvements. City
Treasurer Stephanie Skewes added that any fees collected would need to be placed in
an interest-bearing account, such as a PTIF.
Mayor Rowley clarified that what is needed now is not an impact fee study, but a water
usage study that would allow sewer rates to be tied to water consumption. Chuck
confirmed that Rural Water could conduct such a study for free. He also explained that
the study must demonstrate a system deficiency or the impact of new development, to
justify fee adjustments.
Ivie stressed again that his intent is specifically to tie sewer rates to water rates. Mayor
Rowley agreed that this approach would simply require analyzing current usage
numbers and adjusting rates accordingly, rather than pursuing the more complicated
impact fee process.
Lane was asked for input but stated he would need to review his notes. Mayor Rowley
added that he had already spoken with Kurt about the matter, and Lane indicated he
had also had some related discussions.
Council Member Ivie noted that it is possible the city is already generating enough
revenue from sewer fees, but he would still like the matter to be researched further.
Mayor Rowley pointed out that the city also generates strong revenue from the dump
station. Ivie requested that staff follow up with Kurt again to determine what is needed
to proceed with the study.

Council Member Ivie revisited the idea of conducting a water study to tie sewer
rates to water usage. He asked where the city currently stands on this issue and
what steps need to be taken to move forward. Ivie emphasized that the council
has discussed this multiple times and believes it is important to address now,
particularly to prepare for potential system impacts from future growth. He noted
that having sewer rates tied to water usage would also help mitigate situations
such as residents living in campers on private property, since additional usage
could then be charged fairly through sewer fees.

•

Council Member Adams asked how the Dedicated Hunter Project went. Council
Member Skewes reported that it went well, with volunteers assisting on
Wednesday and Friday alongside the regular employees. Mayor Rowley added
that the group did a great job and the results looked good.

•

•
Page 9



Attest
Myra Young, Recorder: ___________________________________________

Contact: Myra Young (myoung@duchesnecity.com 435-738-2464)

Adams also thanked Lane for putting up the “No Commercial Vehicles” sign near
Wilkins’ home, noting it has made a significant difference by preventing large
trucks from parking there. Lane gave credit to Jay, explaining that he was the one
who installed the sign.

Adams then asked if 800 North had been graded following the last council
meeting when Susan Hamilton raised concerns about the poor condition of the
road. Lane responded that this was the first he had heard of the issue.

•

Work Session

Minutes:
There was no work session held.

11.

Executive Session

Minutes:
There was no executive session held.

12.

Adjournment

Minutes:
MOTION by Council Member Ivie seconded by Council Member Hamilton to adjourn
the regular City Council meeting at 8:08 pm.

Motion carried by unanimous vote.

Council Member Hamilton– Aye•

Council Member Skewes– Aye•

Council Member Adams– Aye•

Council Member Ivie – Aye•

Council Member Baker – Aye•

13.

Page 10



Regular City Council Meeting
Minutes

Tuesday, August 26, 2025 at 6:00 pm

AGENDA
A regularly scheduled meeting of the Duchesne City Council will be held at the Duchesne City Office
Building, 500 East Main, Duchesne, UT at the above date and time. The agenda will be as follows:

Roll Call, Prayer, Pledge

Minutes:
Mayor Rowley conducted the meeting. City Recorder, Myra Young took minutes. City
Council Members present were, Bryce Hamilton, Matt Skewes, Jenny Adams, Cody
Ivie, and Jason Baker. Council Member Adams offered the prayer. Mayor Rowley led
the Pledge of Allegiance.
Duchesne City Employee Attendees: Stephanie Skewes, Jessica North, Lane
Genereaux
Public Attendees: Duncan Kading, Cassidy Kading, Janice Shipman, Taylee Wilson,
Dawnette Browning, RoJean Rowley, Bobi Jo Casper, Jeff Crozier, David Mince, Heidi
Brady, Valerie McLean, Deborah Herron, Julie Hamilton, Susan Hamilton, Stephen
Rowley, Olivia Baker

1.

Minutes

Minutes:
MOTION by Council Member Adams seconded by Council Member Hamilton to
approve the minutes dated 7/29/2025.

Motion carried by unanimous vote.

Council Member Hamilton – Aye•

Council Member Skewes - Aye•

Council Member Adams - Aye•

Council Member Ivie – Aye•

Council Member Baker – Aye•

2.

Bills

Minutes:
MOTION by Council Member Hamilton, seconded by Council Member Adams to pay
the bills.

Council Member Hamilton – Aye•

Council Member Skewes - Aye•

Council Member Adams - Aye•

3.

Page 11



Motion carried by unanimous vote.

Council Member Ivie – Aye•

Council Member Baker – Aye•

Charges and Credits

Minutes:
The City Council reviewed the Charges and Credits.

4.

Business License

Minutes:
The Council reviewed the Business License issued to Jacobson Junk Removal LLC –
Chris Jacobson.

5.

Planning And Zoning

Minutes:
Deborah Herron reported on the Planning & Zoning meetings. At the August 11th
meeting, Carrie Morrill requested a rezone of her property at 500 East 400 North from
residential to residential agricultural so she could keep a few sheep on her ½ acre lot,
which meets the size requirement. Danita Hinton suggested rezoning all the blocks
south of 500 North between 500 East and 600 East to residential agricultural to align
with surrounding zoning. The commission noted that such a change would require a
public hearing and the full rezoning process, which is more involved. They also
discussed the option of allowing Morrill to keep the sheep through a conditional use
permit, noting she uses them for weed control due to limited time from running a
daycare at her home.
The Planning and Zoning Commission reviewed the subdivision ordinance drafted by
Mike Hansen but noted more time is needed for full review; with Clay Crozier’s
resignation, progress is delayed, and the key question remains whether the City
Council wishes to retain authority over subdivision approvals or delegate that
responsibility to the commission.
During the open session, the commission discussed conflicts between the short-term
rental ordinance and the ADU ordinance, noting that the current ADU rules prohibit
short-term rentals. Adjustments will be needed to align the two ordinances and remove
inconsistencies. It was also mentioned that Danita is considering resigning from the
commission; although she had planned for the previous meeting to be her last, she
attended again.
Council Member Ivie requested that, while the commission is reviewing the short-term
rental ordinance, they also take a closer look at the section addressing mobile homes.
He noted that many tiny homes are built on trailers and can fall into a gray area
between recreational vehicles and mobile homes, depending on how they are
classified. Some are technically considered recreational because they are trailer-based,
but in practice they function more like permanent dwellings. Ivie suggested re-wording
this section or refining the definitions to provide clarity on how such units should be
classified under city code.
At the August 25th meeting, the commission reviewed a proposed lot line adjustment
for Lane Genereaux on 200 West. Inconsistencies on the plat were noted, and the
request was conditionally approved pending corrections. The property includes a

6.

Page 12



house and shop; a variance granted last year remains valid and setbacks are met. The
commission recommends approval, with the action to be recorded as a simple
boundary adjustment per the county recorder’s office.
Council Member Adams asked for clarification on the Morrill zoning change. Deborah
explained that under Residential Agricultural zoning, the first 20,000 square feet allows
up to five sheep, one horse, one cow, and twenty poultry. She noted that goats are not
specifically addressed in the ordinance.
The council then discussed whether to change only the Morrill property or rezone the
entire block and suggested reviewing the city’s zoning map as a whole. When asked if
this issue arose from a complaint, Deborah confirmed that a neighbor had complained
about noise. Council Members Ivie, Hamilton, and Adams expressed interest in hearing
the details of those complaints and giving neighbors an opportunity to speak. Council
Member Baker recalled that the council had denied a similar zoning change in the past.
Council Member Ivie stated that before granting a conditional use permit, the council
should first hear the complaints from neighbors. Council Member Hamilton added that
land use issues require a public hearing, meaning no vote could be taken at this time.
Deborah asked for directions on how Planning and Zoning should proceed. The council
agreed that the next step is to hold a public hearing, but that the council must first
decide how they want Planning and Zoning to proceed.
Mayor Rowley emphasized that the council should determine their approach and then
assign Planning and Zoning to conduct the public hearing. Council Member Hamilton
suggested reviewing the zoning plat of the entire town. It was decided to schedule a
work session for September 16th at 6:00 p.m., with representation from Planning and
Zoning to attend.
Mayor Rowley introduced the next item regarding Lane Genereaux’s simple boundary
adjustment. The Council reviewed the submitted plat map but could not act since it
was not listed as an agenda item. The matter will be placed on the September 9th City
Council agenda for consideration.

Interviews for Planning & Zoning Commission

Minutes:
There were two candidates interested in serving on the Planning and Zoning
Commission. Both submitted resumes for the Councils review.
The City Council proceeded to interview David Mince and Duncan Kading.
MOTION by Council Member Ivie, seconded by Council Member Baker, to approve
both David Mince and Duncan Kading onto the the Planning and Zoning Commission.

Motion carried by unanimous vote.

Council Member Hamilton – Aye•

Council Member Skewes - Aye•

Council Member Adams - Aye•

Council Member Ivie – Aye•

Council Member Baker – Aye•

7.

Javelin - Jeff Crozier

Minutes:
Jeff Crozier with Javelin reported that the company has continued working to find a

8.

Page 13



solution for the proposed drilling pad near the airport. He noted that the FAA issued a
favorable determination for this same pad in 2020, later extended in 2021, though it
was submitted under a different name at that time.
Since the last council meeting, Jeff consulted with Kim Silvester of J-U-B Engineers.
Kim provided a letter indicating concerns about the 21-foot clearance angle, which she
measured from the end of the runway. Jeff believes that if the runway striping were
shifted 420 feet north, the clearance could be workable. Kim also suggested moving
the pad 85 feet west, but that location falls on a county road with an existing pipeline
and gas line infrastructure. Adjusting the orientation of the well bores from east–west to
north–south was also considered, but Jeff explained that a drilling rig requires 165 feet
of spacing from the bore, which would extend into the “backyard” of the rig and leave
insufficient room.
Kim further suggested moving the pad 550 feet east, but Jeff explained that option is
unfeasible. That area already contains another pad, along with a gas line, culinary
waterline, saltwater infrastructure, and an access road to other property owners and
well sites. He emphasized that moving the pad further risks compromising the integrity
of the well bores due to torque and tangent limits. They also explored the possibility of
using a rig with a shorter derrick but noted that no such rig with the required top-drive
capacity for long horizontal wells is available.
Jeff stressed that Javelin is running out of options. Council Member Hamilton asked for
clarification about moving south; Jeff explained that option is blocked by a compressor
station and multiple gas lines. Hamilton then asked why another pad could not be used,
but Jeff noted that section lines and mineral rights regulations limit placement, making
this location critical.
Mayor Rowley reminded the council that FAA representative Nathan Shelley had
indicated only 21 feet of clearance between the glide slope and the rig, leaving
approximately 24 feet under a plane. Council Member Ivie asked about runway length,
and it was confirmed the airport has a 5,800-foot runway, which larger planes fully
utilize. The council discussed whether temporarily shutting down the airport might be
an option.
Jeff shared that FAA records show fewer than 1,000 operations annually at the airport,
about 2.5 flights per day, with peak traffic between April through May and again June
through August. Javelin’s drill schedule is March 8th - April 19th, and all three wells
would be drilled during that timeframe.
Council Member Hamilton emphasized that Kim’s current recommendation is not to
approve the project as proposed and that the council needs to discuss possible
options with J-U-B before making a decision. Council Member Ivie questioned what
has changed since FAA approval in 2020, to which it was explained that legislative
changes and the new airport ordinance altered requirements. Council Member Baker
pointed out the liability issue, if approved, the city could be accountable in case of an
accident, but if denied and Javelin proceeds, the liability would fall on the company.
Jeff provided Council Member Adams with the FAA approval letters. Baker noted that
even if the city does not approve, Javelin could proceed under FAA clearance but
emphasized the company is trying to be a “good neighbor.” Jeff confirmed that
NOTAMs would be issued regardless, ensuring pilots are notified.
Jeff also explained that without city approval, their only alternative would be legal
action due to the lack of an appeal process in the ordinance, something they do not
want to pursue. Baker suggested that, given the low flight traffic in the off season, the Page 14



city consider suspending flights for the six-week drilling period or evaluating temporary
use of the secondary runway for emergencies. Mayor Rowley added that IFR
(instrument flight rules) approaches could pose additional risks if not addressed.
The council agreed more information is needed before making a final decision and
plans to meet with Kim on Thursday. Jeff stated he is willing to attend and work toward
a solution. Council Member Ivie asked how soon a decision is needed. Jeff explained
they are already securing a rig for January 3rd, so timely approval is critical. Jeff
questioned the approval letters for the other two wells, Mayor Rowley noted that they
continue to arrive in a single package for all three wells, and Mayor Rowley requested
Jeff separate them so the city can act on the two non-disputed locations. Jeff agreed to
do so.

Independence Day Committee Decision and Update

Minutes:

Council Member Ivie stated that Melissa Hughes had sent him sample wording for a
resolution that, in his understanding, would need to be passed by the City Council in
order to receive the America 250 funds. He said he would ensure the City Recorder
received that information.
Deborah disagreed explaining her instructions came directly from Chris Abbott, who
told her the process was much simpler. According to his July 23rd email, the only
requirements are submitting a signed MOU and Duchesne City’s W-9, after which the
Utah Commission’s finance team would generate an internal invoice and quickly
process the funds.
Ivie noted that his earlier April 22nd email specifically mentioned a resolution
requirement, but Deborah emphasized that the process appears to have changed since
then. She stated the MOU now serves in place of a resolution, and that the Commission
no longer requires cities to submit ideas or proposed actions in advance.
Deborah further explained that the MOU functions as a contract, obligating Duchesne
City to complete certain requirements and submit a final report. She assured the
council that the Independence Day Committee already maintains thorough records,
including receipts, reports, photos, and videos, so meeting these obligations will not be
an issue. She commended Olivia for her strong recordkeeping on behalf of the
committee.
Mayor Rowley’s signature on the MOU would formalize the City’s commitment, with

Olivia Baker and Taylee Wilson, representing the Independence Day Committee,
reported that the committee has decided to establish a 501(c)(3) nonprofit
organization. Olivia explained that the committee views this as the best long-term
solution and noted that Kristen will assist with the required paperwork. Council
Member Adams mentioned that Nate Zilles is also willing to provide support, and
Olivia said they plan to reach out to him soon. Council Member Ivie emphasized
that once the nonprofit and its new bank account are in place, the committee will
need to reconcile all existing finances with the City, then transfer the remaining
funds to the new account.

•

Deborah Herron, representing the Independence Day Comnittee, informed the
council about the upcoming deadline for the America 250 grant and presented a
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the America 250 Utah
Commission and Duchesne City for review. The grant is for $1,500.

•

9.

Page 15



tasks delegated to the IDC. Deborah also noted she had listed Cana Ivie as the point of
contact, as the Commission holds bi-monthly Zoom meetings with participating
communities to ensure funds are used appropriately.
A discussion followed on whether Duchesne City should provide its W-9 or whether it
should be handled by the IDC once their 501(c)(3) status is finalized. City Recorder
Myra Young will consult with Nate Zilles for guidance. Deborah suggested the simplest
approach would be to treat the funds as a donation to the IDC. Once proper direction is
received, the IDC will submit the signed MOU and W-9 to finalize the process.

Canvass of the Primary Election

Minutes:
The Duchesne City Council and Mayor convened as the Board of Municipal Canvassers
to review and certify the official results of the 2025 Municipal Primary Election held on
August 12, 2025.
City Recorder Myra Young, serving as Election Officer, presented the official canvass
report, which included all ballots cast, verified totals, and provisional ballot counts. The
report confirmed that the election was conducted in compliance with Utah Code Title
20A, and all ballots had been verified and counted.
MOTION BY Council Member Ivie, seconded by Council Member Hamiton to certify the
official results of the 2025 Municipal Primary Election as presented.

Motion carried by unanimous vote.
The City Council, acting as the Board of Canvassers, hereby certifies the results of the
Duchesne City 2025 Municipal Primary Election. The candidates receiving the highest
number of votes are declared nominated and will advance to the General Election in
November.
Certified Vote Totals

Jason Andrew Baker – 180 votes - Nominated for General Election
Deborah V Herron – 228 votes - Nominated for General Election
Corby Patrick – 12 votes – Eliminated for General Election

Dawnette Browning – 155 votes – Nominated for General Election
Mark Eugene Nielsen – 189 votes - Nominated for General Election
Jenny Adams – 190 votes - Nominated for General Election
Marty Anthony Herrera – 263 votes - Nominated for General Election
Janice Lynn Shipman - 34 votes – Eliminated for General Election
The official canvass report provided by the Duchesne County Clerk is attached to and
incorporated into these minutes by reference.
The City Recorder/Election Officer will transmit the official canvass certification to the
Lieutenant Governor’s Office in accordance with Utah Code §20A-4-306 and ensure
that notice of the certified results is published as required by law.

Council Member Hamilton – Aye•

Council Member Skewes - Aye•

Council Member Adams - Aye•

Council Member Ivie – Aye•

Council Member Baker – Aye•

Mayor (4-year term)•

City Council (2 seats, 4-year term)•

10.

Page 16



Following the certification of the election results, City Recorder Myra Young presented
Certificates of Election to attending candidates Jason Andrew Baker, Deborah V.
Herron, Dawnette Browning, and Jenny Adams, certifying their nomination to the
Duchesne City 2025 General Election. On behalf of Duchesne City, the Recorder
congratulated all of the candidates and expressed appreciation for their willingness to
serve the community. The certificates formally recognize their success in the primary
election and confirm their placement on the ballot for the upcoming General Election.

Ballot Proposition #6 Argument in Favor of RAP Tax - Voter Information Pamphlet

Minutes:
The Council reviewed requirements for Proposition #6 regarding the voter information
pamphlet. Deputy Recorder Jessica North explained that an official argument in favor
of the proposition must be submitted, and members of the public have until September
9th to submit arguments either for or against.
Jessica presented a draft pamphlet, noting that language from Council Member Adams
had been incorporated. She explained that the City must include a financial plan in the
pamphlet, designating specific projects the RAP Tax funds would support. Council
discussed possible examples, including continue improvements to the swimming pool,
improvements on Main Street, upgrades to the Mickelson Building for arts and
community programs, and future projects such as pickleball courts and upgrades to the
parks.
It was clarified that the pamphlet should highlight positive uses of the tax, emphasizing
that RAP funds are not applied to groceries, gasoline, or medications, but instead
support parks, recreation, and the arts in Duchesne City and to include this is not a new
tax.
Deputy Recorder Jessica North reminded the Council that because of state deadlines,
the argument and project list must be finalized immediately for submission. The Council
agreed to continue the discussion in a brief work session following the meeting to
finalize the argument language for the pamphlet.

11.

15-Minute Open Session

Minutes:

RoJean Rowley approached the council with a complaint regarding zoning
ordinances. She explained that a couple of months ago, her neighbor, Bodie
Allen, brought a pig into his yard. He already had chickens, pheasants, and dogs
which she has no issue with. RoJean stated that she contacted the city office to
file a complaint and ask who enforces zoning. She was told that the mayor
handles such matters and that her concern would be relayed to him. When she
called back the first time, she was told the mayor did not want to discuss the
matter at that time because Bodie’s father had recently passed away, which she
said she understood. The second time she called, she was told the Allens were
allowed to have the pig temporarily for the county fair, and that the city would
obtain a signed form from them. The mayor later confirmed that the form was
never returned. Rojean noted that the fair has ended, the pig remains, and she
has received no further communication. She emphasized that pigs are not listed
as permitted animals under the city ordinance and asked what steps need to be
taken to have the pig removed. Mayor Rowley responded that he had spoken

•

12.

Page 17



with Allens during the fair, but now believes the pig was not a 4-H animal, which
may explain why the paperwork was never submitted. He committed to speaking
with the Allens again tomorrow and stated that residents also have the option to
contact the county animal control officer directly, as the city contracts with the
county for such services. He said he would also reach out to them regarding the
pig. RoJean further expressed frustration, saying: “The council says we believe in
the Constitution, which is that you’re on private property. But I challenge any of
you to show me in the Constitution where it says you don’t have to obey the laws
of a city, county, or state.” She stated that if this matter is not resolved, she will
consider speaking with an attorney. Council Member Hamilton noted that
because pigs are not specifically listed in the ordinance, the situation might need
to be addressed under the nuisance ordinance. Council Member Baker asked
whether RoJean had spoken directly with the Allens. She replied that she had not
and would not, and said it was the city’s responsibility to enforce its ordinances.
Council Member Baker clarified he was only asking questions, pointing out that
pigs are uncommon pets and wondering if the animal was being kept to be
butchered or for some other purpose. He added that if it were him, he would
simply ask the neighbor what was going on. RoJean confirmed the pig was large
and repeated that she would not speak with the Allens herself. Council Member
Ivie asked what specifically about the pig should be considered a nuisance so
that the city would have clear grounds for enforcement. RoJean responded that
pigs cause noise, odor, and attract flies. She is concerned that if pigs are
allowed, then other livestock such as sheep, which currently the council is
discussing could follow, gradually changing the area into agricultural rather than
residential zoning. Council Member Ivie instructed the mayor that when he
speaks with the Allens next, he should be specific: tell them the pig is a nuisance,
explain the reasons, and cite the applicable ordinance. RoJean stated she is
willing to sign a formal complaint if necessary but will not personally confront
Bodie Allen. She also raised concerns about dogs barking through the night,
noting that she had previously brought this issue to the council. The mayor asked
if she had ever called dispatch, as animal control services are now handled
through the county. RoJean replied that she had not, explaining that in the past
the city had its own dog catcher. The mayor clarified that residents must now
contact dispatch directly for animal control services.

RoJean Rowley raised a second issue concerning Hogan Trailer Park. She asked
whether their water bill is still only $230 per month and whether individual trailers
are being billed separately. Council Member Ivie responded that he believed the
park is billed under a commercial rate. RoJean countered that the trailers should
be considered residential. Ivie replied that if they were classified as residential,
they would not be permitted in that location. RoJean asked if the residents live
there year-round. She stated that if they do, she intends to contact the State
Auditor to request an audit of the water bills. She explained that the city
previously passed an ordinance requiring each trailer to have and pay for its own
individual hookup, the same as residential properties, and questioned why Hogan
Trailer Park is treated differently. Ivie clarified that Hogan is classified as a mobile
home park. He added that because neither the city nor the state has an
ordinance defining “temporary,” the classification is not clearly addressed.

•

Page 18



RoJean responded that in other trailer locations within the city, every trailer was
required to pay for an individual hookup. Ivie noted that those were not mobile
homes. RoJean insisted that those sites were also billed under commercial
meters at one time, but the city later determined that trailers must each pay for
an individual hookup. Ivie asked who made that determination. RoJean
answered, “The city,” explaining that an ordinance had been passed during her
time as mayor. Council Member Ivie asked which ordinance she was referring to.
RoJean admitted it was passed some time ago and could not recall whether the
requirement was to place individual meters on each unit or simply to require
individual hookups. She reaffirmed that the city had established such a rule when
she was mayor. Mayor Rowley, who owns Hogan Trailer Park, stated that there is
currently only one meter for the property, which he pays. There was discussion
about Nathan Coulter and Travis Grant’s trailer parks. RoJean explained that the
ordinance had been changed years ago because of problems with commercial
hookups. She recalled that at Travis Grant’s property formerly owned by her
family commercial hookups had been in place, but the city passed an ordinance
requiring each trailer to have an individual hookup instead. She stressed that
Hogan Trailer Park should be treated the same way, pointing out that those
trailers are not temporary. She noted that many residents live there year-round,
some for four or five years or longer. She asked Mayor Rowley to confirm, and he
acknowledged that some tenants have indeed lived there that long. RoJean
concluded by stating that this constitutes full-time residential use.

Jeff Crozier and Valorie McLean approached the City Council to discuss an FAA
advisory. Jeff explained that Valorie had identified information in the advisory that
seemed to answer the earlier questions about VFR and IFR impacts. He noted
that the advisory already contained FAA guidance relevant to the issue. Valorie
elaborated, recalling that this approval was different from others she had handled
in the past. Normally, she is required to notify the FAA three to five business days
in advance and also notify the city office. She typically calls in and requests a
NOTAM (Notice to Airmen) for the city. In this case, however, the FAA notice
specified that the proposed structure would exceed the municipal airport’s VFR
traffic pattern approach by 22 feet. The FAA evaluation stated there would be no
impact on IFR operations, existing or proposed arrival or departure procedures,
enroute instruments, visual flight rules, or minimum flight altitudes. However, the
notice included additional requirements that Valorie had not seen before. It
specified that she was responsible for filing the NOTAM, contacting the
appropriate officials, and addressing an issue with the Precision Approach Path
Indicator (PAPI). According to the advisory, the PAPI would not provide the
required minimum obstacle clearance over the proposed structure. To resolve
this, the proposal should ideally be altered. If that is not possible, the PAPI must
be taken out of service for the duration of the project. Mayor Rowley clarified that
PAPI lights are two red lights located at the end of the runway. When pilots
approach, the lights help them determine whether they are on the correct glide
slope showing if they are too high or too low. Valorie agreed, noting that in this
case, the lights would have to be turned off. The FAA notice also directed that
the airport manager be contacted at least 30 days before the structure is erected.
Council Member Ivie raised a question about IFR, suggesting that since IFR

•

Page 19



approaches are not guided directly to the runway threshold, that may be why the
FAA determined there was no issue. Mayor Rowley responded that the PAPI
lights are specifically the reason for the concern, and that they must be
deactivated. Council Member Ivie reiterated that the FAA’s statement confirmed
there is no IFR impact, while Council Member Hamilton questioned how that
could be. Ivie clarified that he interpreted the notice to mean that IFR instruments
do not guide pilots directly to the end of the runway in a way that would be
obstructed. Valorie confirmed, explaining that it is specifically the PAPI lights that
provide that visual guidance, which is why they must be disabled. Jeff added that
as long as the required NOTAM is filed and distributed to airmen in advance,
pilots will be aware of the change and able to prepare accordingly. The FAA’s
instructions outline the steps to coordinate with the airport manager and shut off
the PAPI 30 days prior to construction of the temporary structure. Council
Member Ivie requested a copy of the FAA document Valorie and Jeff were
referencing so the council could review it and clarify any discrepancies. Jeff
provided a copy to the council.

Lane Genereaux reported that Dillon Dastrup had contacted him regarding a
flooding issue near Central Utah. Lane stated that he visited the site, took
photos, and observed water coming from Bryce Hamilton’s property, flowing
down the road in front of the dentist’s office. Instead of following the waterway,
the flow was crossing over into the driveway and entering the building. Lane
noted that Dillon is willing to meet with the council to discuss the matter further.
He was unsure if any of the ongoing work on 150 East might help mitigate the
problem but wanted to bring it to the council’s attention. Discussion followed,
including the possibility of installing a larger culvert to help divert the water.

•

Book Of Complaints, Concerns And Comments

Minutes:
There were no complaints, concerns & comments recorded in the book.

13.

Mayor And Council Review Of Old Business

Minutes:

Council Member Baker requested an update on the Old Farm Road project.
Mayor Rowley reported that the contractor had laid nearly the first 400 feet of
sewer line one foot too high. As a result, the section had to be pulled up and re-
laid, and work has progressed nearly to Wade Poulson’s residence as they
correct the grade. Deborah Herron asked whether sleeves were being installed
for irrigation. Mayor Rowley confirmed that they are.

•

Council Member Adams asked if the mayor had been able to get a roofer to
evaluate and bid the roof on the Mickelson Building. Mayor Rowley explained
that Jones Paint and Glass had come out, but only to address the doors on the
north and east sides of the building. The quote for that work is $7,900 and does
not include the roof. He noted that the roof issue appears to be caused by a
leaking skylight rather than the entire roof, with water possibly overflowing into
the heater pipe. Discussion followed regarding the door repairs. The quote
includes replacing one set of doors and repairing the other. Council Member Ivie

•

14.

Page 20



asked whether the front doors in the city building would also be replaced. City
Recorder Myra clarified that the plan is to install a removable T-post in the middle
and replace the hardware, as the current crash-bar system is no longer
functional. While full new doors have been considered, the design of the
entryway requires more extensive changes. With the T-post and hardware
replacement, the doors will function properly without needing a complete rebuild.

There was discussion about speaking with Justin Lazenby with UDOT about the
lane makings at the pool and the 191/Main Street construction. Council Member
Adams reported that she had spoken with Justin and asked Mayor Rowley if he
had spoken with him. Mayor Rowley confirmed that UDOT and the contractor
want to close the northbound lane and reroute traffic as part of their control plan.
The proposal is to direct northbound traffic onto 200 South, over to Center
Street, and through the traffic light for the next couple of weeks. Mayor Rowley
told UDOT the matter would be discussed with the council. Council Member
Hamilton expressed concern about liability, noting that those roads were not built
with a base designed to handle that volume of traffic. Discussion followed about
the challenges of rerouting traffic and what the safest, most practical solution
would be. It was noted that once construction on Main Street began, truck
drivers had already started creating their own diversions. Council Member Ivie
asked whether the rerouting would involve 200 or 400 South. Mayor Rowley
clarified that traffic would be routed to Center Street and out onto Highway 87.
The left-hand lane would be closed, with right-hand turns directed from 400
South to Center Street. It was noted that this made more sense than routing
through 200 South. Mayor Rowley will be meeting with UDOT and the contractor
the next day to discuss the plan further. The closure is expected to last
approximately two weeks. Additional discussion focused on whether measures
could be taken to discourage traffic from diverting down Center Street and on the
relative impacts of routing through 200 South versus 400 South.

•

Work Session

Minutes:
There was a work session held to discuss Ballot Proposition #6 Reauthorization of RAP
Tax Argument for.
Mayor Rowley called the work session to order at 8:07 p.m. to discuss Ballot
Proposition #6, the reauthorization of the RAP Tax, argument in favor.
The council discussed preparing the official “argument in favor” of Proposition #6 RAP
Tax Reauthorization for inclusion in the voter information pamphlet. It was emphasized
that the information should be presented clearly and efficiently so voters understand
why continuation of the tax is important. Jessica provided examples of RAP Tax
language from other cities to guide the council’s drafting. The council also reviewed
how past RAP Tax revenues have been used, including Main Street Christmas
decorations and new picnic tables for the park. It was agreed that the argument must
clearly state this is not a new tax, but rather a continuation, and should focus on how
the funds benefit the community without making promises that cannot be guaranteed.
After discussion, Council Member Baker read the following draft statement reflecting
the council’s points. He suggested the statement should clarify that, if passed, RAP Tax
funds will continue to support maintenance of the city pool and may also be applied to

15.

Page 21



Attest:
Myra Young, Recorder: ______________________________________________

Contact: Myra Young (myoung@duchesnecity.com 435-738-2464)

future projects, including renovation of the Mickelson Building to include amenities
such as a pickleball court, recital hall, or game room. Additional projects under
consideration include a splash pad, replacement of playground equipment at Roy Park
and Wallace Park, ongoing park maintenance, and extension of community trails such
as the Riverwalk.
MOTION by City Council Member Ivie seconded by Council Member Adams to adjourn
the work session at 8:17 pm.

Motion carried by unanimous vote.

Council Member Hamilton – Aye•

Council Member Skewes – Aye•

Council Member Adams – Aye•

Council Member Ivie – Aye•

Council Member Baker – Aye•

Executive Session

Minutes:
There was no executive session held.

16.

Adjournment

Minutes:
MOTION by Council Member Ivie seconded by Council Member Hamilton to adjourn
the regular City Council meeting at 8:05 pm to go into a work session to discuss Ballot
Proposition #6 Reauthorization of RAP Tax Argument in favor.

Motion carried by unanimous vote.

Council Member Hamilton – Aye•

Council Member Skewes – Aye•

Council Member Adams – Aye•

Council Member Ivie – Aye•

Council Member Baker – Aye•

17.

Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Duchesne City
Transaction Register - 08/22/2025 to 09/08/2025

Account No. Customer Name Transaction Type Billing Code Description Reference Date Amount

Page 1 9/8/2025 12:58 PM

4339339 Allen, M. Lynn Charges & Credits WA - 513713 Water service sales Fixed the broken water line Rodney ok'd an  310134 08/28/2025 -800.00
4515936 Olafsson, Vihjalmur Orn Charges & Credits WA - 513713 Water service sales transfer billing from 08/31/2025 to Casidy Ka 310152 08/31/2025 -88.94
4515936 Olafsson, Vihjalmur Orn Charges & Credits WA - 513713 Water service sales transfer billing period 07/31/2025 to Casidy  310151 09/03/2025 -88.94
4516357 Bell, Denver Charges & Credits FS - 513721 Fill Station - Residential Waived the terminatin billing charge of $15/  310159 09/04/2025 -15.00
4516788 Duchesne County Emergency Mana Charges & Credits FPF - 103422 Fire protection fees 08/10/2025 F25-0712 Old Glory Road 310143 09/02/2025 375.60
4516788 Duchesne County Emergency Mana Charges & Credits FPF - 103422 Fire protection fees 08/12/2025 F25-0720 191 Summit MVA 310143 09/02/2025 179.55
4516788 Duchesne County Emergency Mana Charges & Credits FPF - 103422 Fire protection fees 08/16/2025 F25-0732 Muir Incident 310143 09/02/2025 518.40
4516788 Duchesne County Emergency Mana Charges & Credits FPF - 103422 Fire protection fees 08/18/2025 F25-0739 MM 6.5 SR 87 Fire 310143 09/02/2025 159.60
4516788 Duchesne County Emergency Mana Charges & Credits FPF - 103422 Fire protection fees 08/27/2025 F25-0782 6207 South Powerline 310143 09/02/2025 53.04
4516788 Duchesne County Emergency Mana Charges & Credits FPF - 103422 Fire protection fees 08/27/2025 F25-0787 Skitzy Rd Gas Vent 310143 09/02/2025 713.70
4517660 Kading, Cassidy Charges & Credits WA - 513713 Water service sales transfer from 4515936 to 4517660 july billing  310156 08/31/2025 88.94

40280281 Duchesne County - Fill Station Charges & Credits FS - 513722 Fill Station - Commercia Rodney instructed me to cut the counties bill  310140 09/02/2025 -1,491.37

($395.42)

Page 83



EBR - Annual Notifications 2025 -
Duchesne - UT

Quote created: September 3, 2025 Reference: 20250903-111125019

Customer - Duchesne - UT
500 E Main St

Duchesne, UT 84021
United States

Lane Genereaux
laneg79@hotmail.com

4356502315

Products & Services

Annualized First Class Letter - 2 Sheets 338 x $2.14 / year
for 1 year

Annual subtotal $723.32

Total $723.32

Comments
Fees will be invoiced upon signature of this order form and will be due Net 30 from the
invoice date.

Luke Wagner - Commercial Account Manager 120Water

Page 84



Signature

Signature Date

Printed name

Countersignature

Countersignature Date

Printed name

This quote expires on September 30, 2025

Page 85



Questions? Contact me

Luke Wagner
Commercial Account Manager

luke.wagner@120water.com
+13178093023

Purchase terms

Fees will be invoiced upon signature of this order form and will be due Net 30 from the
invoice date

The letters package described in this Order Form represents the minimum number of letters that will be billed
upon signature of the order form. Any unsent letters will expire 12 months from the start date stated in this
order form and cannot be carried over to the next year. Letters are not eligible for a credit or refund.
Commitment for the quantity of letters purchased in this Order Form will be automatically renewed at the end of
the 12-month term for another 12 months for the same quantity unless Customer notifies 120Water at least 30
days prior to the end of the then-current term.

The letters package reflected in this Order Form are subject to overage fees. If the number of sheets purchased
is exceeded after content is created, a change order will be issued for the overages detailing the difference in
price based on the rate card below. The adjusted rate will be reflected on future Order Forms.

This Order Form, together with the Master Services Agreement available
at https://120water.com/master-services-agreement/ (the “MSA”), shall become a legally binding
contract upon the earlier of (a) the date both parties execute the Order Form or (b) the date
Customer initially began using the Services. Any capitalized word not otherwise defined in this
Order Form shall have the same meaning as set forth in the MSA.

120Water may reject this Order Form if: (1) the signatory below does not have the authority to bind
Customer to this Order Form, (2) changes have been made to this Order Form (other than
completion of the purchase order information and signature block), or (3) the requested purchase
order information or signature is incomplete or does not match our records or the rest of this
Order Form. Subscriptions are non-cancelable before their end of the Term.

Page 86



120Water
250 S Elm St

Zionsville IN 46077
US

Page 87


